

1969 Senate Bill 351

Date published:
March 25, 1970

CHAPTER 500, LAWS OF 1969

AN ACT to repeal 84.01 (1) and (2), 110.01, 110.02, 110.036, 110.99 (2), 114.30 and 340.01 (8) and (12); to renumber 84.01 (3) to (19) and (21) to (25), 110.04, 110.99 (3) and (4), 114.013 and 340.01 (1) and (15a); to amend 15.463, 83.013, 84.01 (10), (11), (17) and (21), as renumbered, 84.02 (4) (a) and (c) and (5), 84.04 (2), 84.11 (1) (intro.) and (b), 84.12 (1) (intro.), 84.30 (10), chapter 110 (title), 110.07 (1) and (3), 110.99 (1) and (2), as renumbered, 114.20 (1), 114.31 and 114.33 (12); to repeal and recreate 15.461; and to create 15.463 (3), 84.001, 114.001, 340.01 (1) and (15b) of the statutes, relating to the department of transportation.

The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do enact as follows:

SECTION 1. 15.461 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

15.461 SAME; PROGRAM RESPONSIBILITIES. The department of transportation shall have the program responsibilities specified for the department under ch. 114 and s. 32.05 as it relates to ch. 114.

(1) DIVISION OF HIGHWAYS. The division of highways shall have the program responsibilities specified for the division under chs. 84 and 86 and ss. 32.05, 32.18, 59.965, 60.29 (20) (e), 66.941 (7), 67.13 (2), 83.015 (3), 83.02, 83.10, 88.87 (2) (c), 103.50, 175.05, 182.33 (1), 182.48, 192.48 and 236.12.

(2) DIVISION OF MOTOR VEHICLES. The division of motor vehicles shall have the program responsibilities specified for the division under Title XXXII, chs. 110, 194 and 218, subch. II of ch. 121 and s. 313.093.

SECTION 2. 15.463 of the statutes is amended to read:

15.463 (1) There is created ~~in the department of transportation~~ a division of highways *which is attached to the department of transportation under s. 15.03. The division of highways is* under the direction and supervision of the highway commission. One member of the commission shall be from the territory north of a line running along the southern boundaries of Pepin, Eau Claire, Clark, Marathon, Shawano and Oconto counties, one member shall be from the territory south of such line and east of a line running along the western boundaries of Outagamie, Winnebago, Fond du Lac, Dodge, Jefferson and Walworth counties and one member shall be from the territory south of the first line and west of the second line. At least 2 members shall have had comprehensive business experience and practical knowledge of highway planning and construction.

(2) There is created ~~in the department of transportation~~ a division of motor vehicles *which is attached to the department of transportation under s. 15.03. The division of motor vehicles is* under the direction and supervision of the administrator of *the division* of motor vehicles who shall be nominated by the governor, and with the advice and consent of the senate appointed, for a 6-year term expiring on March 1 of an odd-numbered year.

SECTION 3. 15.463 (3) of the statutes is created to read:

15.463 (3) DIVISION OF AERONAUTICS. There is created in the department of transportation a division of aeronautics under the direction and supervision of the administrator of the division of aeronautics who shall be appointed by and serve at the pleasure of the secretary of transportation.

SECTION 4. 83.013 of the statutes is amended to read:

83.013 ACCIDENT REVIEW COUNCIL. In each county the highway commissioner, a representative of law enforcement of the county as designated by the county board and the director of highway safety promotion and administration of the ~~division of motor vehicle department vehicles~~ or his designated representative shall comprise a ~~committee council~~ which shall at least quarterly review an accident map, to be maintained by a designated law enforcement officer of the county board which shows the exact location of each accident in the county for that year. Upon each review, the ~~committee council~~ shall make written recommendations for any corrective actions it deems appropriate to the county highway committee, where appropriate, to the highway commission, where appropriate, and to any other appropriate branch of local government.

SECTION 5. 84.001 of the statutes is created to read:

84.001 DEFINITIONS. In this chapter:

(1) "Commission" means the highway commission of the division of highways.

(2) "Division" means the division of highways of the department of transportation.

SECTION 6. 84.01 (1) and (2) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 7. 84.01 (3) to (19) and (21) to (25) of the statutes are renumbered 84.01 (1) to (17) and (18) to (22), respectively, and 84.01 (10), (11), (17) and (21), as renumbered, are amended to read:

84.01 (10) The commission or its authorized representatives may enter private lands to make surveys or inspections.

(11) REPORTS AND BULLETINS. The commission shall ~~make a biennial report of its work to the governor for the use of the legislature and~~ issue such bulletins, pamphlets and literature as it deems necessary.

(17) The commission shall annually determine, as far as possible, what improvements will be made during the succeeding year, and notify the county clerks prior to November 1, as to the improvements in their respective counties. Such notice shall also be given to the ~~director of the state conservation commission department of natural resources and to the secretary of the state soil and water conservation committee board.~~

(21) The commission, as a part of the improvement and maintenance of highways, is authorized to acquire, construct and maintain lands and facilities, including scales or weighing stations for use of the ~~state motor vehicle department division of motor vehicles~~ or other traffic officers for weighing, measuring or inspecting vehicles and loads operating on any public highway in the state. Lands necessary may be adjacent or contiguous to the highway and weighing station facilities may be constructed and maintained upon the traveled portion of the highway or any other part thereof.

SECTION 8. 84.02 (4) (a) and (c) and (5) of the statutes are amended to read:

84.02 (4) (a) The ~~highway commission~~ division of highways shall mark the highways of the state trunk highway system and also the connecting streets. The markers shall be uniform, except that the numbers thereon shall correspond with the numbers given to various routes by the highway commission and found on the official highway maps issued by the ~~commission~~ division of highways. No similar design or marker shall be used for marking other highway routes.

(c) The ~~commission~~ *division of highways* shall erect and maintain such standard guide and warning signs and lighting as it deems necessary within the right of way along the state trunk system, and it is unlawful to erect any lighting or display any other guide or warning signs upon the state trunk system, except in cases of emergency or when approved by the *highway* commission. Any erection in violation hereof may be removed by the ~~commission~~ *division of highways*.

(5) As often as it may deem necessary, the ~~commission~~ *division of highways* shall publish maps showing the state trunk highway system and such other main highways and other features as may seem desirable. Such maps shall be furnished to the department of administration upon the requisition of the ~~commission~~ *division of highways* and shall be sold by it at a price to be fixed by the *highway* commission, which price shall be not less than cost. The *highway* commission may permit the use of the base plates for other maps and publications in consideration of a fair fee for such use. The ~~commission~~ *division of highways* shall make and publish or duplicate such maps as are required for its use, and shall publish folded highway maps of Wisconsin for free distribution to the public.

SECTION 9. 84.04 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

84.04 (2) The ~~commission~~ *division of highways* may develop and maintain waysides, overlooks, windbreak hedges, turnouts and carry on roadside improvement along, or in close proximity with state trunk highways. These activities may be performed within highway rights of way and upon lands otherwise publicly owned or controlled, or on lands acquired in proximity therewith. The *highway* commission may acquire lands needed for such purposes.

SECTION 10. 84.11 (1) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

84.11 (1) (intro.) Bridge projects shall include all approaches and embankments, all lands necessary for right of way or other purposes, and all other necessary appurtenances. The word "construction" as used in this section shall include reconstruction. ~~The word "commission" as used in this section means highway commission of Wisconsin.~~ The following classes of bridge projects located wholly within the state shall be eligible to construction under the provisions of this section, provided that such eligibility shall not require that any such project be constructed under this section exclusively or bar any such eligible project from construction under any other provision of law that may be applicable:

SECTION 11. 84.12 (1) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

84.12 (1) (intro.) All bridge projects which include bridges located over any state boundary waters shall be eligible to construction and reconstruction under this section, but such eligibility shall not require that any such project be constructed under this section exclusively or bar any eligible project from construction under any other provision of law that may be applicable. Projects shall include all approaches and embankments, all lands necessary for right of way or other purposes, and all other necessary appurtenances. ~~The word "commission" as used in this section means highway commission of Wisconsin.~~ Such bridge projects shall be classified as follows:

SECTION 12. 84.30 (10) of the statutes is amended to read:

84.30 (10) Owners of signs which do not conform to this section or the rules promulgated hereunder shall remove all such signs from the zone of regulation not later than one year from September 23, 1959. Nonconforming signs not so removed shall be removed by the ~~state highway commission~~ *division of highways* as provided in this section. No new signs, not conforming to this section, may be erected subsequent to the date of publication of the rules of the ~~state~~ *highway* commission promulgated under the authority of this section.

SECTION 13. Chapter 110 (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

CHAPTER 110.

~~MOTOR Vehicle Department Vehicles.~~

SECTION 14. 110.01 and 110.02 of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 15. 110.036 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 16. 110.04 of the statutes is renumbered 346.70 (3m).

SECTION 17. 110.07 (1) and (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

110.07 (1) The administrator of *the division* of motor vehicles shall employ not to exceed 375 traffic officers, 18 of whom shall be employed as inspectors to implement the random motor vehicle inspection provisions of s. 110.075. Such traffic officers, in addition to the director of *the bureau* of enforcement of the division of motor vehicles, shall constitute the state traffic patrol, to enforce and assist in the administration of chs. 110, 194, 218 and 341 to 349, and ch. 350 where applicable to highways, or orders or rules issued pursuant thereto. Such traffic officers shall have the powers of sheriff in enforcing the above chapters and orders or rules issued pursuant thereto. Such traffic officers shall have authority to enter any place where vehicles subject to chs. 110, 194, 218 and 341 to ~~349~~ 350 are stored or parked at any time to examine such vehicles, or to stop such vehicles while en route at any time upon the public highways to examine the same and make arrests for all violations thereof. All municipal justices, judges, district attorneys and law enforcement officers shall assist in enforcing chs. 110, 194, 218 and 341 to ~~349~~ 350, and orders or rules issued pursuant thereto, and law enforcement officers shall report to the division of motor vehicles all arrests and disposition of court cases involving the aforementioned statutes.

NOTE: Reconciles the amendments made by chapters 257 and 276 (1967).

(3) The administrator of *the division* of motor vehicles may employ inspectors who shall not wear the uniform of the state patrol, whose duties shall be to enforce and assist in administering ~~ss. 110.075, 110.10 (11)~~ and chs. ~~129, 110, 194, 218, 340 to 345 and 347 to 349.~~ Such inspectors, in the performance of these duties, shall have the powers and authority of state traffic officers. For the purpose of death, disability and retirement coverage, such inspectors shall be subject to ss. 66.191 and 66.90 to 66.918 as is the state traffic patrol. The administrator may clothe and equip inspectors as the interest of public safety and their duties require.

SECTION 18. 110.99 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

110.99 COUNCIL ON TRAFFIC LAW ENFORCEMENT. (1) ~~There is created a governor's council on traffic law enforcement to be composed of 17 members. The governor shall appoint 5 members who shall be recognized community leaders in the fields of business, labor and industry, and 8 members plus 4 alternate members (2 in each area plus an alternate to be chosen to represent any absent member for that area) who shall be professionals in the traffic law enforcement field representing: state traffic enforcement officers; county sheriffs and deputy sheriffs; county patrols; and municipal chiefs of police. Such appointments shall be for 3 year terms. Two senators including a representative of the minority party shall be appointed as are standing committees and 2 assemblymen including a representative of the minority party shall be appointed by the speaker of the assembly for terms ending on February 1 of each odd numbered year. Vacancies shall be filled by the governor for the unexpired term. Members of the council on traffic law enforcement shall be reimbursed for their actual and necessary expenses in the performance of their duties from the appropriation under s. 20.395 (6) (u) and (7) (u).~~

SECTION 19. 110.99 (2) of the statutes is repealed.

CHAPTER 500

1504

SECTION 20. 110.99 (3) and (4) of the statutes are renumbered 110.99 (2) and (3), respectively, and 110.99 (2), as renumbered, is amended to read:

110.99 (2) The council shall make recommendations to the governor for better utilization of enforcement agencies, equipment and communications; shall designate the reports to be filed with it by such agencies; and shall report to the governor any proposals for changes in the law which it believes will bring about a better overall enforcement effort; and shall issue a biennial report to the governor and the legislature.

SECTION 21. 114.001 of the statutes is created to read:

114.001 DEFINITIONS. In this chapter:

- (1) "Department" means the department of transportation.
- (2) "Division" means the division of aeronautics.
- (3) "Secretary" means the secretary of transportation.

SECTION 21m. 114.013 of the statutes is renumbered 114.002.

SECTION 22. 114.20 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

114.20 (1) All aircraft customarily kept in this state shall be registered with the ~~state division~~ of aeronautics ~~commission~~ on or before November 1, 1953, and annually thereafter on or before November 1, except those aircraft which have been designated by the ~~state aeronautics commission~~ ~~secretary of transportation~~ as unairworthy aircraft and which are in a severely damaged condition or in a state of major deterioration with one or more of the plane's flight surfaces removed. All aircraft purchased to be customarily kept in this state shall be registered by the purchaser with the ~~commission division~~, except that this subsection shall not apply to aircraft owned and held by a designated aircraft dealer solely for purposes of sale. The fee for such registration shall be as set forth in sub. (2). Application for registration shall be filed not more than 30 days from date of purchase and if filed after that date a penalty of \$5 shall be charged. No aircraft for which a registration certificate is required shall be purchased or sold or otherwise transferred without assignment of the registration certificate. Upon payment of the fee the ~~commission division~~ shall issue a certificate and evidence of registration which shall be displayed in and on the aircraft at all times in the manner prescribed by the ~~commission division~~.

SECTION 23. 114.30 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 24. 114.31 of the statutes is amended to read:

114.31 POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE SECRETARY OF TRANSPORTATION. (1) The ~~commission~~ ~~secretary~~ shall have general supervision of aeronautics in the state and promote and foster a sound development of aviation in this state, promote aviation education and training programs, assist in the development of aviation and aviation facilities, safeguard the interests of those engaged in all phases of aviation, formulate and recommend and promote reasonable regulations in the interests of safety, and coordinate state aviation activities with those of other states and the federal government. ~~The commission~~ He shall have all powers that are necessary to carry out ~~its~~ the policies of the department of transportation, including the right to require that statements made to ~~it~~ ~~him~~ be under oath. The ~~commission~~ ~~secretary~~ is especially charged with the duty of informing ~~itself~~ ~~himself~~ regarding all federal laws that affect aeronautics in this state, all regulations pursuant to such laws, and all pending legislation providing for a national airport system, in order that ~~it~~ ~~he~~ may recommend to the governor and the legislature such measures as will best enable this state to derive the maximum benefits from such legislation if and when it shall become effective. It shall be the duty of all other state boards, commissions, departments and institutions, especially the appropriate educational institutions to cooperate with the ~~aero-~~ ~~nautics~~ ~~commission~~ ~~secretary~~.

(2) ~~It~~ *He* shall conduct studies and investigations with reference to the most effective development and operation of airports and all other aeronautical facilities, and issue reports of ~~its~~ *his* findings. The ~~commission~~ *secretary* shall prepare and may modify in recognition of changing conditions an airport development plan.

(3) In cooperation with the appropriate educational institutions of the state, and jointly with them ~~it~~ *he* shall formulate programs of aviation education and training, and disseminate information regarding such programs.

(4) ~~It~~ *He* shall cooperate with and assist the federal government, the political subdivisions of this state, and others engaged in aeronautics or the promotion of aeronautics, and shall seek to coordinate the aeronautical activities of these bodies. To this end, the ~~commission~~ *secretary* is empowered to confer with or to hold joint hearings with any federal aeronautical agency in connection with any matter arising under ch. 114, relating to the sound development of aeronautics, and to avail ~~itself~~ *himself* of the cooperation, services, records and facilities of such federal agencies, as fully as may be practicable, in the administration of said sections. ~~It~~ *He* shall furnish to the federal agencies ~~its~~ *his* cooperation, ~~and the services, records and facilities of the division of aeronautics,~~ insofar as may be practicable.

(5) ~~It~~ *He* shall cooperate with the federal government in any air marking system and weather information.

(6) ~~It~~ *He* may, insofar as is reasonably possible, offer the engineering or other technical service of the ~~commission~~ *division of aeronautics*, without charge, to any municipality desiring them in connection with the construction, maintenance or operation or proposed construction, maintenance or operation of an airport. Municipalities are authorized to cooperate with the ~~commission~~ *secretary* in the development of aeronautics and aeronautical facilities in this state. The ~~state planning board~~ *department of local affairs and development* and all other agencies are authorized and directed to make available such facilities and services, and to cooperate as far as possible to promote the best interests of aeronautics of the state.

(7) In the performance of ~~its~~ *his* duty to promote and foster aviation education and the sound development of aviation in this state, as provided by sub. (1), and increase knowledge of the state and its resources, the ~~commission~~ *secretary* is authorized, in connection with chartered flights sponsored by educational institutions approved by ~~the commission~~ *him*, to enter into contracts with insurance companies authorized to transact business in this state for the purpose of issuing insurance to passengers against injuries sustained in connection with such sponsored flights. In order to effectuate such contracts the ~~commission~~ *secretary* is authorized to advance deposit premiums out of its appropriation by s. 20.395 (1) in aggregate amounts not exceeding \$500; such deposit premiums to be repaid by the insurers from premiums collected by the insurers from the insured, in accordance with the contract. The ~~commission~~ *secretary* shall designate an employe of ~~the division of aeronautics~~ *to act as its* *his* authorized representative to supervise such sponsored flights, whose duty it shall be to require compliance with all federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations designed to promote safety, to keep an account of the insurance issued to passengers and premiums collected, and perform such other duties as the ~~commission~~ *secretary* may require. Such authorized representative may assist the insurer in the issuance of insurance to passengers in such sponsored flights, but shall receive no compensation for any services so rendered. At the termination of the period covered by a contract, the insurer shall repay the advanced premium, less any amount by which the aggregate amount of premiums guaranteed under

CHAPTER 500

1506

the contract shall exceed the aggregate amount of premiums collected. Such repayment shall be paid into the state treasury and be credited to the appropriation by s. 20.395 (1).

(8) (a) On July 1 of each even-numbered year the governing body of each county, city, village or town that contemplates an airport development project in the next 6 years for which it proposes to request state or federal aid shall notify the ~~commission~~ *secretary* of such intention and submit such information as ~~the commission~~ *he* requires.

(b) The ~~commission~~ *secretary* shall establish priorities for the projects proposed under s. 114.33 (2) in relation to the over-all airport development plan taking into account such factors as industrial, commercial, recreational and resources development and transportation needs.

(c) As part of ~~its~~ *his* budget report, the ~~commission~~ *secretary* shall submit a tentative priority list of projects ~~it~~ *he* recommends for state aid in the following biennium.

SECTION 25. 114.33 (12) of the statutes is amended to read:

114.33 (12) Lands held by any department, board, commission or other agency of the state may, with the approval of the governor, be conveyed to the ~~commission~~ *secretary* in the manner prescribed by statute and, if none is prescribed, then by a conveyance authorized by appropriate resolution of the controlling department, board or commission of the agency concerned.

SECTION 26. 340.01 (1) of the statutes is renumbered 340.01 (1m).

SECTION 27. 340.01 (1) of the statutes is created to read:

340.01 (1) "Administrator" means the administrator of the division of motor vehicles.

SECTION 27m. 340.01 (8) and (12) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 28. 340.01 (15a) of the statutes is renumbered 340.01 (15m).

SECTION 29. 340.01 (15f) of the statutes is created to read:

340.01 (15f) "Division" means the division of motor vehicles in the department of transportation.

SECTION 30. CORRECTION OF NAMES. (1) AERONAUTICS COMMISSION. (a) Wherever the term "state aeronautics commission" appears in sections 114.01, 114.20 (7) and (11) and 114.316 of the statutes, the term "division of aeronautics" is substituted.

(b) Wherever the term "state aeronautics commission" appears in sections 32.05 (1), 76.28 (6) and 114.135 (6), (7) and (9) of the statutes, the term "secretary of transportation" is substituted.

(c) Wherever the term "commission" appears in sections 114.20 (3) (a) and (b), (4), (6), (8), (9) and (12) and 114.316 of the statutes, the term "division" is substituted.

(d) Wherever the term "commission" appears in sections 114.135 (8) and (9), 114.315, 114.32 (1), (3) to (5), 114.33 (2) to (8), (10) and (11), 114.34 (1) and 114.35 (1) and (2) of the statutes, the term "secretary of transportation" is substituted.

(2) HIGHWAY COMMISSION. (a) Wherever the term "state highway commissioners" appears in section 67.04 (5) (L) of the statutes, the term "highway commission" is substituted.

(b) Wherever the term "chairman of the state highway commission" appears in sections 44.15 (1) and 66.941 (6) of the statutes, the term "chairman of the highway commission" is substituted.

(c) Wherever the term "state highway commission's" appears in sections 59.965 (5) (f) 4 and 84.09 (3m) of the statutes, the term "highway commission's" is substituted.

(d) Wherever the term "commission" appears in sections 60.29 (20) (e) 2, 67.13 (2), 84.01 (3) to (8), (12) to (14), (16) and (18), as renumbered, 84.02 (1), (3) (a), (4) (d), (6), (7), (10) and (11), 84.025 (3) and (4), 84.03 (1) (a) and (b), (3) (a) and (b), (5) and (9), 84.05, 84.06 (1) to (4), (5) (title) and (text) and (6) to (8), 84.07 (1) and (2), 84.08, 84.09 (1) to (3m), (5) and (5m), 84.10, 84.103 (4) (c), 84.105 (6), 84.11 (1) (b), (2) to (4) and (5) (b) to (7), 84.12 (2) to (4) and (6) to (8), 84.14 (1) and (4), 84.15 (1), 84.20, 84.25 (1) (title) and (text), (3) (title) and (text), (4), (5), (7), (9), (10) and (13), 84.29 (6) (b), 84.295 (7) (b) and (10) (a), 84.30 (5) and (7), 84.40 (2) (a) to (d) and (i) and (4), 86.04 (3) (a) and (b), 86.16 (5), 86.25 (1m), 86.31 (intro.), (c) and (e) and (2), 86.32, 86.33 and 86.34 (2), (3) and (5) of the statutes, the term "highway commission" is substituted.

(e) Wherever the term "state highway commission" appears in sections 16.58 (5), 16.85 (1), 25.40 (2), 32.05 (1), 32.18, 32.20, 59.635 (7), 59.965 (1) (d), (5) (a), (d) 1, 3, 4 and 6, (e) and (f) 3 and 4, (7), (8) and (10) (a), 60.29 (20) (e) 2, 62.16 (2), 66.021 (8) (b), 66.03 (5), 66.30 (3p), 66.941 (7), 67.05 (1), 67.13 (2) to (4), 80.02, 81.01 (2), 83.01 (1), (7) (d) and (g), 83.015 (3) (c) and (d), 83.02, 83.025, 83.026, 83.027 (1), 83.03 (4), 83.04 (1), 83.08 (4), 83.10 (1) and (2), 84.015 (2), 84.02 (1), (3) and (10) (b), 84.03 (1) (a), (b) and (c) and (3) (a) and (c), 84.06 (1), 84.07 (2) and (4), 84.09 (1), (3m), (6) and (7), 84.103 (1) and (4) (c), 84.104, 84.105 (1), (3), (4), (5), (6) and (7), 84.13 (1) and (2), 84.135 (2), (3) and (4), 84.14 (1) and (4), 84.15 (1), 84.25 (13), 84.27, 84.28, 84.29 (1) and (10) (b), 84.295 (10) (b), 84.30 (3), (4), (5), (8) and (9), 84.40 (title), (1) (a) and (b), (2) (intro.), (a) and (b) and (3), 84.41 (7), 84.42, 86.04 (1) to (3) (a), 86.07 (2), 86.08, 86.14 (1), 86.16 (1) and (5), 86.19 (2) to (4), 86.25 (1), (2) and (3), 86.34 (1), 88.87 (2) (a) and (c), 114.12, 175.05 (4) (b), 182.33 (1), 182.36 (2), 182.48, 192.29 (2), 192.48 (1) to (3) and (8), 194.08, 195.29 (1), 236.12 (2) (a), 236.13 (1) (e), 236.42 (1) (a), 341.17 (3) (f), 346.57 (4) (i), 346.73 (1), 347.26 (7), 348.08 (1) (c) 2, 348.25 (3), 348.26, 348.27 (1), (2) and (4) to (7), 349.07 (1) and (2), 349.08 (1) to (4) and (6), 349.10 (1) (intro.) and (2), 349.11 (1), (2) (intro.) and (a), (3) (c) and (4) to (6), 349.12, 349.13 (1) and (2) (intro.) and 349.16 (1) (intro.) and (2) of the statutes, the term "highway commission" is substituted.

(f) Wherever the term "state highway commission" appears in sections 84.02 (12), 84.20, 84.30 (5) and (7) of the statutes, the term "division of highways" is substituted.

(g) Wherever the term "commission" appears in section 84.30 (7) of the statutes, the term "division of highways" is substituted.

(h) Wherever the term "highway commission" appears in section 84.20 of the statutes, the term "division of highways" is substituted.

(3) MOTOR VEHICLE DEPARTMENT. (a) Wherever the term "administrator of motor vehicles" appears in section 110.075 (2) of the statutes, the term "administrator of the division of motor vehicles" is substituted.

(b) Wherever the term "state motor vehicle department" appears in sections 48.36 (1) (a) and (2) (a), 83.016 (2), 218.01 (1) (L) and 218.11 (1) of the statutes, the term "division of motor vehicles" is substituted.

(c) Wherever the term "commissioner of the motor vehicle department" appears in sections 110.06 (1), 194.24 (2), 194.31, 194.35 (2) and 194.37 (1) of the statutes, the term "administrator of the division of motor vehicles" is substituted.

(d) Wherever the term "commissioner of motor vehicles" appears in sections 86.35 (2), 110.06 (2) and (4), 121.52 (1), (2) (c) and (4), 194.10, 218.01 (2) (k) and 346.70 (4) (d) of the statutes, the term "administrator of the division of motor vehicles" is substituted.

CHAPTER 500

1508

(e) Wherever the term "commissioner's" appears in sections 194.10, 344.04 (2), 344.14 (2) (f), 344.15 (3), 344.20 (2) (c) and 345.09 (2) of the statutes, the term "administrator's" is substituted.

(f) Wherever the term "motor vehicle commissioner" appears in sections 218.01 (2) (k), 341.12 (4), 344.19 (2), 345.09 (1), 345.16 (1), 347.05 (1), 347.76 (3) and 348.185 of the statutes, the term "administrator of the division of motor vehicles" is substituted.

(g) Wherever the term "motor vehicle department" appears in sections 25.40 (1) (a), 48.36 (3), 86.35 (1), 110.06 (3) (b) and (d), 110.065, 110.08 (1), 110.20 (2) (intro.), 121.53 (4), 194.01 (15), 194.02, 194.03 (4), 194.04 (3) (am) and (b) and (5a), 194.09 to 194.11, 194.14 (1), 194.15, 194.17 (1), 194.33, 194.38 (intro.), 194.41 (1), 194.42, 194.43, 194.44 (1) and (2), 218.01 (2) (k), 218.10 (1) and (2), 218.11 (2), 289.415 (2), 289.48 (2), 313.093, 341.41 (6), 343.06 (3), 343.07 (2) (b), 343.30 (2) and (4), 345.17, 346.70 (2) and (4) (a), 346.71 (1), 346.73, 347.48 (2), 347.76 (1) (c), 348.20 (1), 349.19 and 349.25 (4) of the statutes, the term "division of motor vehicles" is substituted.

(h) Wherever the term "commissioner" appears in sections 110.06 (5), 110.065, 110.20 (1) (a) and (b), (2) (a) and (c), (4) and (5), 194.10, 194.31, 218.01 (2) (k), 218.10 (6) (d), 218.22 (3) (d), 218.32 (3) (d), 341.09 (3), 341.13 (1) (a), 341.17 (1), (3) and (6), 341.33 (3), 341.34 (2), 341.40 (1) (d), 341.41 (1), (3), (4) and (6) to (8), 341.63 (1) (intro.) and (2), 343.06 (3), (4) (intro.), (5) (intro.), (8), (10) and (11), 343.085 (3) and (4), 343.09 (2) to (4), 343.10 (1), 343.14 (2) (intro.), 343.15 (3), 343.16 (1) (am), (2) and (3) (a), 343.23 (2), 343.25 (intro.) and (3), 343.26, 343.28 (2), 343.29 (2), 343.30 (1m), (1n) and (2d), 343.31 (1) (intro.) and (2), 343.32 (1) (intro.) and (2), 343.325 (2) to (4), 343.33, 343.34, 343.35 (1) and (3), 343.38 (1) (b), 343.60 (4) (a), 343.61 (2) and (4), 343.62 (1) and (2), 343.64 (intro.), 343.65 (intro.) and (2), 343.66 (intro.), 343.67 (intro.), 343.68, 343.69, 343.72 (5) and (11), 344.02, 344.03, 344.04 (1) and (2), 344.05, 344.06 (title) and (text), 344.08 (1), 344.09 (1) 344.13 (title) and (text), 344.14 (1) and (2) (c) and (h), 344.15 (2) (a) and (b), (3), (4) and (6), 344.16, 344.17, 344.18 (1) (b), (c) and (d), (2), (3) (intro.) and (b) and (4), 344.19 (2) and (3), 344.20 (1) and (3), 344.21, 344.25, 344.27 (2) and (3), 344.31 (1), 344.32 (1) (intro.) and (2), 344.34, 344.36 (1) and (2), 344.38 to 344.40, 344.41 (1) (intro.) and (c) and (2), 344.45 (1), 344.46 (1), 344.52 (2), 345.07 (title) and (text), 345.09 (2), 345.11 (3) (intro.) and (a), (4), (6) and (7), 345.17, 346.70 (4) (b) and (c) (intro.) and 2, 347.25 (2), 347.35 (3) (b), 347.44 (3), 347.47 (4), 347.485 (1) (a) and (b), 347.76 (3) and 348.25 (3) of the statutes, the term "administrator" is substituted.

(i) Wherever the term "department" appears in sections 110.06 (1), 110.08 (1) and (4), 110.20 (1) (a) and (b), (2) (intro.) and (b), (4) and (5), 194.04 (4) (d), 194.42, 218.01 (1) (L), (1a), (2) (bc), (bd), (be), (c) and (i), (2a), (3) (a) 17, (bf) 1 and (g), (3a), (7b), (8) (c), 218.10 (3) and (6), 218.20, 218.21 (1) (intro.) and (e), 218.22 (title), (1) and (3) (intro.), 218.23 (1), 218.30, 218.31 (1), 218.32 (title), (1) and (3) (intro.), 218.33 (1), 341.06 (1), 341.08 (1), (2) (c) and (e), (3) and (5), 341.09, 341.10 (intro.) and (2), 341.11 (1), 341.13 (3), 341.14 (1), (1a) and (2), 341.145 (1), (2) (intro.) and (3), 341.16 (1) to (3), 341.17, 341.25 (1) (intro.), 341.26 (1), (2) (intro.), (2m) and (3) (intro.), 341.27, 341.28 (3) (b) and (c), (5) and (7) (b), 341.29, 341.30 (3), 341.305, 341.31 (1) (b) 3 and (2) (a), 341.32 (1), 341.33, 341.34 (title) and (text), 341.35 (5) and (6), 341.41 (8), 341.42 (2), (3) and (6), 341.51 (title) and (1) to (4), 341.57 (2) and (4), 341.62, 341.63 (3), 342.05 (1) (b), (2) and (4), 342.06 (1), 342.08, 342.09, 342.10, 342.11 (intro.) and (3), 342.12, 342.13, 342.14 (intro.) and (6), 342.15 to 342.18, 342.19 (2), 342.20, 342.21 (2), 342.22, 342.25, 342.255 (intro.) and (2), 342.26, 342.281, 342.282

(2), 342.283, 342.285, 342.30 to 342.34, 343.06 (intro.), (4) (c), (5) (c) and (9), 343.07 (1) and (2), 343.08 (1) (intro.), (a) and (d) and (2), 343.085 (1) and (4), 343.09 to 343.11, 343.12 (2) (intro.), 343.125 (4) (intro.) and (b), (4a), (4b) and (5), 343.13, 343.14 (1) and (2) (f), 343.15 (1) and (4), 343.16 (1) (a), (2) and (3) (b), 343.17, 343.19, 343.20 343.21 1 (intro.) and (g), 343.22 (1), 343.23, 343.26, 343.28, 343.29, 343.30 (1m), (1n) and (4), 343.31 (1) (e), 343.32 (2), 343.325, 343.33, 343.35 (1) and (3), 343.36, 343.38, 343.39 (2), 343.46 (3), 343.60 (4) (a), 343.61 (1), 343.63 (intro.), 343.69, 343.70, 343.71 (3), 343.72 (5) and (12), 344.02, 344.08 (2), 344.09 (2), 344.14 (1) (h), 344.19 (3), 344.20 (2) (a), 344.38, 344.41 (3), 344.45 (1), 344.51 (1), 345.17, 346.70 (2), (3m), as renumbered, and (4) (b) and (g), 346.73, 347.45 (2) (c) 1 and 4, 347.48 (2) and 349.19 of the statutes, the term "division" is substituted.

SECTION 31. Wherever the reference to section "114.013 (2)" appears in section 77.52 (1) (a) 5 of the statutes, the reference "114.002 (2)" is substituted.

Approved March 11, 1970.
